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THE SECRETARY OF THE TREASURY
WASHINGTON

September 11, 1976

Memorandum to The Honorable James M. Cannon
' Director, Domestic Council’

Subject: Homeownership Tax Incentives

I have just been informed that a set of proposals to
encourage homeownership will be the subject of memoranda for
the President this weekend. Some of the suggested schemes
include subsidies in the form of tax incentives. I would
like to record my strong opposition to the proposed tax y
devices. The proposals in gquestion are titled "Homeowner-
ship Opportunities for Middle America (HOMA)" and "Tax
Exempt Savings" on a spreadsheet which was provided us by
Lynn May of your staff. I have two overriding reasons for
opposing the tax aspects of these proposals: -

. As I have repeatedly emphasized, the amount of

. complexity now cluttering up the tax code threatens se-

- riously to undermine the self-assessment tax system. These
proposals would add yet another layer of complex provisions
affecting millions of taxpayers and would allocate tax
advantages in an arbitrary way which would certainly be
perplex1ng to many taxpayers, especially those who have
already sacrificed to ‘buy a home.

. The Administration is strongly committed to a bal-
anced budget in Fiscal 1979. We can ill afford to commit
the Administration to tax expenditure programs of the
' magnitude being proposed here without the fullest consid-
eration of the overall budget, including previously advanced
tax initiatives. The "HOMA" proposal, for example, appears
to have an estimated FY '79 cost of $1.2 billion.

Furthermore, I see a number of specific problems with
these proposals. Since the "HOMA" proposal is apparently
under the most serious consideration, I shall confine my
further comments - to it. This proposal suffers from the
following defects: '



. The amount of subsidy which would be distributed to
people who would purchase homes without the program is
extremely large. Accepting the quantitative estimates
provided on the spreadsheet, approximately 83 percent of the
total government expenditure or $4.5 billion over the life
of the program would be paid out to households who would
have purchased homes in any case.

. No consideration appears to have been given to the
short run effect of this proposal on the prices of existing
homes. Can we not expect a substantial part of its effect
to be "dissipated" in higher market prices for existing
houses? ' '

. Since construction of single family dwellings most-
suited to owner occupancy is more predominant outside
central cities, the locational effect of this incentive
would be in the direction of movement to the suburbs. - This -
will aggravate problems of central cities.

. An effect of the proposal will be to shift demand
away from rental housing. This will further depress the
portlcn of the bulldlng industry which is engaged in build-
ing multl—unlt structures.

. There will be many problems developing clear and fair
rules for administering the HOMA proposal. For example, how
are we to identify "purchasers of first homes"? How do we
deal with situations where one spouse of a married couple -
has previously been a joint owner of a home? 1Is the housing
. unit defined to include such tenure forms as co-ops and
condominiums?

Finally, I am disturbed by the procedures under which
these tax initiatives have been advanced within the Adminis-
tration. Treasury has primary responsibility for tax
policy. Significant tax proposals which are to be forwarded
for Presidential consideration, should be given full anal-

- ysis and review by the Office of Tax Policy. In this case
only the most informal, indirect, and last-minute commu-
nication brought these measures to my attention.
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